
MARCH 12, 2024 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 

PACKET 



1 | P a g e  
 

 Greg Parker, Mayor 
Shawn Bolerjack, East Ward Alderman 

  Kala Sisco, East Ward Alderman 
Kyle Williams, West Ward Alderman 
John Whelan, West Ward Alderman 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 

202 N. Washington 
January 25, 2024 

 
Call Meeting to Order 
The regular season meeting of the Board of Alderman of the City of Salem, Missouri, was called to order by 
Mayor Greg Parker at 6:00 p.m.    
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Greg Parker. 
 
Opening Prayer 
Opening prayer was led by Public Works Director Mark Nash. 
 
Roll Call 
Council Members present included Shawn Bolerjack, and Kyle Williams.  Alderwoman Kala Sisco was absent.   
Others in attendance were:  City Administrator Sally Burbridge, City Attorney James Weber, City Clerk Tammy 
Koller, Chief of Police Joe Chase, Public Works Director Mark Nash, Finance Director Stacey Houston, 
Water/Sewer Supervisor Donnie Moore, and Parks and Recreation Supervisor Melissa Dubois. 
Citizens in attendance were: Debbie Murphy, Sue Woods, Patricia Vance, James Vance, Ben Johnson, Sherry 
Lee, Patti McKeown, and Liz Condray. 
 
Approve Agenda 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve the agenda with the addition of Resolution No. 3-2024. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, and Whelan. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. 
 
Consent Agenda  
December 12, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 19, 2023, Special Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes 
Mo Dept. of Rev. C.A.R.T. Tax $19,563.12-December 2023 
Municipal Court Report-November 2023 
Municipal Court Report-December 2023 
PD Monthly Report-November 2023 
PD Monthly Report-December 2023 
Mo Dept. of Rev. Capital Improvements Tax $68,803.11-December 2023 
Mo. Dep. Of Rev. Additional City Tax $125,353.52-December 2023 
Mo. Dept. of Rev. City Tax $137,606.23-December 2023 



2 | P a g e  
 

Mo. Dept. of Rev. Storm Water/Local Parks $51,602.43-December 2023 
Parks and Recreation Monthly Report January 2024 
Alderman Williams moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack. 
The vote was 3 Aye- Williams, Bolerjack, and Whelan.  0 Nay. Motion carried. 
 
ONCRC Presentation 
A summary of this presentation was handed out by Liz Condray and is attached to these minutes. 
 
New and Miscellaneous Business 
Purchase of Gateways for AMI System 
Alderman Williams moved to approve the quote from Nexgrid Technology Solutions for $8,266.00 
Seconded by Alderman Whelan. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Whelan, and Bolerjack.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Sale of Surplus equipment and vehicles 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve the sale of surplus equipment and vehicles to be sold through Purple 
Wave Auction Service. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Service Line Bill Protection Program 
Alderman Williams moved to approve the Utility Committee’s recommendation of non-mandatory coverage of 
$2,500 per occurrence for water bills only due to leaks, through the ServLine Program. 
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Bolerjack, and Whelan. 0 Nay. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution No. 1-2024 
A resolution authorizing the mayor to enter into an agreement between the City of Salem, Missouri and Online 
Information Services, Inc., A North Carolina Corporation for collection services. 
Alderman Williams moved to table Resolution No. 1-2024. 
Seconded by Alderman Whelan. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Whelan, and Bolerjack.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Airport Fuel Bid 
Alderman Williams moved to approve the bid from Naegler Transport for $10,397.50 
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Bolerjack, and Williams.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Parks and Recreation Vehicle Bid Approval 
Alderman Williams moved to approve a budget adjustment from the prior year’s fund balance with the 
$35,000 allocated for the purchase of a work truck. 
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack 



3 | P a g e  
 

The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Bolerjack, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution No. 2-2024 
A resolution authorizing the mayor to execute an agreement between the City of Salem, Missouri, and the 
Meramec Regional Planning Commission (MRPC). 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve Resolution No. 2-2024. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Lead Service Line Assistance Agreement/General Terms and Conditions Documents 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve the mayor’s signature on the Lead Service Line Assistance 
Agreement/General Terms and Conditions Documents. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye- Bolerjack, Williams, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
TCPA Policy 
Alderman Williams moved to approve the TCPA Policy as part of the Salem Municipal Utilities policies. 
Seconded by Alderman Whelan. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Whelan, and Bolerjack.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Financial Update 
Finance Director Stacey Houston provided a financial update through January 2024.  Documentation has been 
attached to these minutes. 
 
Resolution No. 3-2024-Emergency Amendment to agenda 
Resolution No. 3-2024 was added as an emergency amendment due to the time sensitive nature for 
submitting documents to the online portal for the Welcome Home Project and receiving required updated 
documentation after the 24-hour posting requirement. 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve Resolution No. 3-2024. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams, 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Board Appointment 
Community Involvement Committee  
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve Mayoral appointments Roma Jones, Kristy Bermudez, Alayna Sellers, 
Sierra Connell, Carlos Lopez, Patty McKeown, and Gary, McKeown to the Community Involvement Committee 
and Sally Granowski to the Library Board. 
Seconded by Alderman Whelan. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Whelan, and Williams.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Reading of Bills (First Reading) 
Bill No. 3581-An ordinance amending the Utility Committee definition for the City of Salem, Missouri. 
City Clerk Tammy Koller read the first reading of Bill No. 3581 by caption only. 



4 | P a g e  
 

No vote was taken. 
Bill No. 3582-An ordinance amending the amounts of utility deposits for the City of Salem, Missouri. 
City Clerk Tammy Koller read the first reading of Bill No. 3582 by caption only. 
No vote was taken. 
 
Bill No. 3583- An ordinance amending portions of the housing violations codes for the City of Salem, 
Missouri. 
City Clerk Tammy Koller read the first reading of Bill No. 3583 by caption only. 
No vote was taken. 
 
Bill No. 3584-An ordinance amending portions of the housing violations codes for the City of Salem, 
Missouri.  
City Clerk Tammy Koller read the first reading of Bill No. 3584 by caption only. 
No vote was taken. 
 
Bill No. 3587-An ordinance amending the annual budget for the City of Salem, Missouri beginning July 1, 
2023, and appropriating funds pursuant thereto. 
City Clerk Tammy Koller read the first reading of Bill No. 3587 by caption only. 
No vote was taken. 
 
Reports of City Officials, Boards and Committees 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Melissa Dubois gave an oral report of the January 17th, 2024, report which is 
attached to these minutes. 
 
City Administrator Sally Burbridge gave an update on the Old City Hall.  The two water leaks at opposite 
corners of that building resulted in some flooding and damage.  City crews have done much of the clean-up.  
The carpet and ceiling tiles have been removed from the Council Chambers, as well as the carpet from a room 
off the kitchen.  City Clerk Koller has submitted the initial request to the insurance for claims.  We are in the 
process of getting a quote from ServPro for possible disinfecting.  City Administrator Burbridge states that 
there may be a need for a plumber to come in to redo some of the toilets, replace some kits in toilets and in 
the urinals.  The water has been shut off until further notice. 
 
City Administrator Sally Burbridge asked Water/Sewer Supervisor Donnie Moore to speak about an event that 
happened earlier in the day.  Moore stated there was a sewer inspection with DNR in reference to the city’s 
sewer collection system.  DNR spent about six hours inspecting the SEMOM (Sewer Collection Maintenance 
Operation Management) program.  Inspectors looked at the last five years of budget, Capital Improvements as 
well as the projected ten-year plan.  Inspectors did not find any violations and will be mailing a letter of 
compliance. 
 
Mayor Greg Parker thanked all city employees for all the work they put in each and every day. 
 



5 | P a g e  
 

Public Works Director Mark Nash reported due to the cold weather, digs-in have settled.  The street 
department is working on getting those filled in.  He asks that if anyone sees one that they have missed to 
please contact him. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported utility bills are being processed and will go out on time. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported the final count on disconnects was 18. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash commended the street department for clearing the roads during the recent 
snow. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash thanked everyone for the opportunity to work for the city.  He will be 
retiring on January 31, 2024. 
 
Alderman Shawn Bolerjack reported he expects the proposed public comment policy to be on next meeting’s 
agenda. 
 
Alderman Kyle Williams reported he has done some more research on the proposed bus route.  He states 
there are two options. There is a yearly grant through MoDot, which is a 90/10 grant and would allow for the 
purchase of a bus by the city.  There is also the option of working with SMTS since they have a hub established 
within the city.  Alderman Williams stated there are pros and cons to both.  He says financially the cost to the 
city would be about the same. 
 
Alderman Kyle Williams thanked everyone who opened heating centers during the cold weather. 
 
Closed Session 
Pursuant to Section 610.021(3) of the Revised State Statutes of the State of Missouri pertaining to the 
hiring, firing, disciplining, or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when 
personal information about the employee is discussed or recorded. 
 
Pursuant to Section 610.021(12) of the Revised State Statutes of the State of Missouri pertaining to sealed 
proposals and related documents or any documents related to a negotiated contract until a contract is 
executed, or all proposals are rejected. 
 
Alderman Whelan moved to go into closed session for personnel, and contracts. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Whelan, Williams, and Bolerjack.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
The Board went into closed session at 7:31 P.M. 
Alderwoman Sisco joined the meeting at 7:32 P.M. 
No action was taken. 
 
Adjournment 
 
 With no further business to come before the Board, Alderwoman Sisco moved to adjourn. 



6 | P a g e  
 

Seconded by Alderman Whelan.   
The vote was 4 Aye-Sisco, Whelan, Bolerjack, and Williams.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
 Mayor Greg Parker adjourned the meeting at 9:42 P.M. 
 
______________________________                 
Tammy Koller 
City Koller 
                                                                                                                                         
APPROVED: 
_________________________________ 
Greg Parker 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Tammy Koller  
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

 Greg Parker, Mayor 
Shawn Bolerjack, East Ward Alderman 

  Kala Sisco, East Ward Alderman 
Kyle Williams, West Ward Alderman 
John Whelan, West Ward Alderman 

 
SPECIAL BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES 

1200 W. Rolla Rd. 
February 20, 2024 

5:30 P.M. 
 
Call Meeting to Order 
The special session meeting of the Board of Alderman of the City of Salem, Missouri, was called to order by 
Mayor Greg Parker at 5:34 p.m.   
 
Roll Call 
Council Members present included Shawn Bolerjack, John Whelan, and Kyle Williams. Alderwoman Kala Sisco 
was absent.  Others in attendance were:  City Administrator Sally Burbridge.  
 
Closed Session 
Pursuant to Section 610.021 (3) of the Revised State Statutes of the Sate of Missouri pertaining to hiring, 
firing, discipling, or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when personal 
information about the employee is discussed or recorded. 
Alderman Williams moved to go into closed session for personnel. 
Seconded by Alderman Whelan. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Bolerjack, Sisco, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
The Board of Alderman went into closed session at 5:35 P.M. 
No action was taken. 
 
With no more business to come before the board, Alderman Bolerjack moved to adjourn. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
_____________________________                 
Tammy Koller 
City Koller 
                                                                                                                                              
APPROVED:                                                                                ATTEST: 
_____________________________                                 ___________________________________ 
Greg Parker                                                                                Tammy Koller 
Mayor                                                                                          City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

 Greg Parker, Mayor 
Shawn Bolerjack, East Ward Alderman 

  Kala Sisco, East Ward Alderman 
Kyle Williams, West Ward Alderman 
John Whelan, West Ward Alderman 

 
SPECIAL BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES 

1200 W. Rolla Rd. 
February 20, 2024 

5:30 P.M. 
 
Call Meeting to Order 
The special session meeting of the Board of Alderman of the City of Salem, Missouri, was called to order by 
Mayor Greg Parker at 5:34 p.m.   
 
Roll Call 
Council Members present included Shawn Bolerjack, John Whelan, and Kyle Williams. Alderwoman Kala Sisco 
was absent.  Others in attendance were:  City Administrator Sally Burbridge.  
 
Closed Session 
Pursuant to Section 610.021 (3) of the Revised State Statutes of the Sate of Missouri pertaining to hiring, 
firing, discipling, or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when personal 
information about the employee is discussed or recorded. 
Alderman Williams moved to go into closed session for personnel. 
Seconded by Alderman Whelan. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Bolerjack, Sisco, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
The Board of Alderman went into closed session at 5:35 P.M. 
No action was taken. 
 
With no more business to come before the board, Alderman Bolerjack moved to adjourn at 7:12 P.M. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, and Whelan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
_____________________________                 
Tammy Koller 
City Koller 
                                                                                                                                              
APPROVED:                                                                                ATTEST: 
_____________________________                                 ___________________________________ 
Greg Parker                                                                                Tammy Koller 
Mayor                                                                                          City Clerk 
 
 
 
 





 
   

City of Salem Alderman Report 

February 2024 

Melisa DuBois, Parks and Recreation Director 

 

 

Youth Sports and Programs 

o Skills and Drills 
• 69 participants from 1st-5th grades 
• February 5th, 6th, and 8th. 
• Collaboration with 5th/6th grade travel team coaches and SHS Coaches and 

Football players. 
• Shirts have been purchased and sponsored by Dent County Farm Supply and 

Dent Count AG 
o Soccer 

• Soccer Registration open from January 25th-February 13th at $35 per athlete.  
February 14th-20th late fee $45 per athlete.   

• 302 total registrations ranging from 4U-14U. 
• Practices in March games will begin Saturday April 6th. 
• Applications are currently available for Soccer Referees. 

Grounds and Satellite Parks 

o Al Brown  
• Lighting Project - Location has been marked for installation of new box, 

projected delivery date is March 5th, 2024.  Electric and pipe is in the process of 
being installed. 

• Vandalism to grounds- someone has been mudding and tearing up parking lot 
and grass on both sides of Al Brown.  Chief Chase has been made aware of the 
issues and is looking to install a temporary camera. 

o Salem City Park 
• Skate Park – major cracks in concrete have been repaired by the construction 

crew.  Along with loose concrete blocks removed. 
• Pavilion- the first pavilion as you enter the park is experiencing some were.  The 

construction crew made repairs and recommended a new roof.  New metal was 
approved for purchase and Construction Crew replaced the pavilion roof. 



 
• Pavilion Rentals – Pavilion rentals can be made by stopping by the City 

Administration office or calling (573) 729-4811 extension: Utility. 

 

o Parks and Recreation Shop 
• Garage Door replacement for lower garage.  The door frame was raised for 

bucket truck; that requires a new garage door installment.  The construction 
crew will have to frame the door to ensure the new garage door has solid surface 
to anchor to. Door has been ordered. 

 

Other Parks and Recreation Business 

o Parks and Recreation Work Truck 
• Parks and Recreation work truck was approved for purchase on 1/25/24.  Truck 

was purchased on 1/29/24.  Action Graphics has added the Parks and Recreation 
logo to both Parks and Recreation Trucks.  The 2002 Dodge will be taken to the 
City Mechanic to prepare for Purple Wave. 

o Salem High School Service Day 
• Scheduled for April 9th.  Parks and Recreation will have students mulching trees 

in the park.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 























Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 March 12, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM:  Request for Road Closure 

AGENDA TITLE:  

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Rob Benowitz 

ACTION REQUESTED:  

SUMMARY BY:  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

Mr. Benowitz has asked that Fourth Street from Hwy 19 to Jackson Street be blocked for the 
100 Acre Wood Rally Park Expose’. 
 
 
PROCUREMENT 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

 
 
 
SUPPORT DOCUMENTS:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 



Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 March 12, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM:  Request for Road Closures 

AGENDA TITLE:  

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Jonathon Stokes 

ACTION REQUESTED:  

SUMMARY BY:  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

Jonathon has requested road closures for the Salem High School Senior class parade on May 
11th at 6:00 P.M.  Parade will lineup at SBU and end at the High School.  
 
 
PROCUREMENT 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

 
 
 
SUPPORT DOCUMENTS:  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 8-2024 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DONATION OF PROPERTY BY THE CITY OF SALEM 
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE 
COMMUNITY BY THE SALEM HOUSING AUTHORITY.  
 
WHEREAS; rent is the biggest and most important expense each month for most households; and 

 
WHEREAS; approximately 108 million Americans live in a rental home or apartment, and one-fourth 
of these renters spend more than half of their monthly income on rent payments, and 
 
WHEREAS; when residents of affordable housing can make their rent payments, they are able to spend 
more on local purchases such as healthier foods, better access to healthcare and spending more at local 
businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS; evictions spark a cycle of instability for families which harms a community’s social and 
economic wellbeing which is why affordable housing that leads to housing stability works to prevent 
evictions no matter the economic climate, and  
 
WHEREAS; among other factors like income and education, housing is a component that drastically 
influences a person’ physical and mental well-being, so housing is a social determinant of an 
individuals’ and a family’s health, and 
 
WHEREAS; individuals in housing that is poorly constructed or maintained may be exposed to lead 
paint, water contamination, and a slew of other environmental risks that can lead to chronic health issues 
for children, families and seniors which come at enormous and preventable cost to both the residents 
and their communities, and 
 
WHEREAS; developing more affordable housing creates more job opportunities by hiring construction 
companies, and creates the need for additional staffing for maintenance and operations once built, and 
 
WHEREAS; affordable housing provides the chance to decrease childhood poverty and is the 
foundation for establishing healthy habits and allowing children to focus on their goals and education, 
and 
 
WHEREAS; the City of Salem, Missouri desires to assist in the development of housing options for 
community members for all of the reasons stated above. 
 
         NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
  
         Section 1. 
          The Board of Aldermen agree, that should the Salem Housing Authority secure adequate funding 
for the construction of 24 affordable housing units, the City of Salem shall donate approximately 4 acres of 
the property known as the Old Middle School grounds for such purpose. 
 
         Section 2.  
 If the Salem Housing Authority should not secure funding for construction of the above mentioned 
housing units, the City of Salem shall retain ownership of the acreage known as the Old Middle School 
grounds. 
 
 
 
 



          Section 3. 
This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and 

approval. 
 
 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AND APPROVED 
BY THE MAYOR THIS 12th DAY OF March 2024. 
 
 
APPROVED: ATTEST: 
 
 

  

Greg Parker                           Tammy Koller 
 Mayor                                                                          City Clerk 
 
 
                                                                                      APPROVAL AS TO FORM: 
 
 

                                                                             James K. Weber  
                                                                             City Attorney                                



Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 03/12/2024 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

AGENDA TITLE: Resolution No. 9-2024 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Stacey Houston / Sally Burbridge 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of annual agreement with Wave Internet for use of 
space on the “bottle rocket” tower 

SUMMARY BY: Stacey Houston 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

The city has had an annual agreement with Wave Internet for use of space on top of the “bottle 
rocket” water tower for the past few years. Proposed is a renewal of this agreement without 
changes except for the dates which are retroactive to February 1, 2024, through January 31, 
2025. I have reached out to Wave Internet, and they are in agreement with this. 
 
 
PROCUREMENT 

  
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

This agreement will result in $1,200 to the Rents and Royalties line item in the Water 
Department. 
 
SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: Agreement between Wave Internet and the City of Salem 

DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to approve agreement with Wave 
Internet and the City of Salem 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 9-2024 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO RENEW THE TOWER LEASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SALEM AND WAVE INTERNET TECHNOLOGIES 
LLC FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WIRELESS BROADBAND ACCESS POINT WITH 
RELATED EQUIPMENT ON A DESIGNATED PORTION OF THE CITY OF SALEM’S WATER 
TOWER LOCATED AT TOWER AND CONDRAY STREETS EFFECTIVE THE 1ST DAY OF 
FEBRUARY 2024, FOR THE PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR. 
 
         NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
  
         Section 1. 
          That the Board of Aldermen of the City of Salem, Missouri give authorization to the Mayor to renew a 
tower lease agreement, on behalf of the City of Salem, Missouri, with Wave Internet Technologies LLC for the 
installation of the wireless broadband access point with related equipment on the City of Salem’s water tower 
located at Tower and Condray Street effective the 1st day of February 2024 for a period of one (1) year. 
 
         Section 2.  
 The fee to be paid by Wave Internet Technologies LLC to the City of Salem, Missouri is  
$ 100.00 a month with payment to be made in quarterly installments in advance as described in the agreement 
described in “Attachment A”. 
 
 
          Section 3. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and 
approval. 
 
 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AND APPROVED 
BY THE MAYOR THIS 12th DAY OF March 2024. 
 
 
APPROVED: ATTEST: 
 
 

  

Greg Parker                           Tammy Koller 
 Mayor                                                                          City Clerk 
 
 
                                                                                      APPROVAL AS TO FORM: 
 
 

                                                                             James K. Weber  
                                                                             City Attorney                                



TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT is effective as of the date of the last to sign 

below by and between City of Salem, a Missouri Municipal Corporation (“Lessor”) and 

Wave Internet Technologies LLC, a Missouri limited liability company (“Lessee”). 

WHEREAS Lessor is the owner of a water tower (“Tower”) located on property 

owned by Lessor at a site known as Bottle Rocket Tower at Condray and Tower Street 

(“Tower Site”); and 

WHEREAS Lessee desires to install a wireless broadband access point with related 

equipment on a designated portion of the Tower and Tower Site; and 

WHEREAS Lessor desires to lease to Lessee and Lessee desires to lease from 

Lessor the right to non-exclusive use of the Tower in connection with the operation of its 

equipment. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual benefits and in reliance on the 

representations and warranties contained in this Tower Lease Agreement, the parties 

agree as follows: 

1. LEASED PREMISES AND RIGHTS GRANTED: Subject to the terms 

and provisions of this Tower Lease Agreement, Lessor leases to Lessee, and Lessee 

leases from Lessor the following: 

That certain space on the Tower to be used solely for the installation, operation, 

and maintenance of Lessee’s equipment as intended under FAA and FCC guidelines and 

designated for installation on the Tower, all of which will be installed and operated at 

Lessee’s sole cost and expense. The space on the Tower shall be referred to as the 

“Leased Premises;” 

a. The right to go upon or cause its employees and agents to go upon the 

Leased Premises for the purpose of operating, repairing, maintaining, replacing, 

improving (within original scope) the Improvements. 

b. Lessee takes the leased premises “as is” and subject to all conditions 

existing at the time of the execution of this Tower Lease Agreement. Lessor makes no 

representations about the suitability of the leased premises for the installation or 

operation of the improvements or for any particular purpose of Lessee. 



2  

2. TITLE AND QUIET POSSESSION:     Lessor represents (a) that it is 

the Lessor of the Tower Site; (b) that it has the right to enter into this Tower Lease 

Agreement; (c) that the person signing this Lease has the authority to sign; and (d) that 

Lessee is entitled to access to the Leased Premises as described herein and to the quiet 

possession of the Leased Premises throughout the term so long as Lessee is not in default 

beyond the expiration of any cure period. 

3. TERM: The term of this Tower Lease Agreement shall commence 

on February 1, 2024, and shall continue for a period of one year unless earlier terminated 

in accordance with provisions of this Tower Lease Agreement or renewed. 

4. INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS: 

a. Construction and Installation. Subject to the provisions of this Tower 

Lease Agreement relating to access to the Lease Premises, Lessee shall have the right to 

install its Improvements. All installations shall be consistent with good engineering 

practices, in compliance with all requirements of the FCC, FAA and all other 

governmental agencies, whether federal, state or local and whether legislative, judicial or 

executive (collectively “Governmental Authorities), with authority over such operations. 

Installation of Lessee's Improvements shall be coordinated with Lessor so that all efforts 

are exerted to avoid Interference and/or interruption of transmission by Lessor and/or 

Lessor’s other tenants. The manner of use and the equipment and devices to be used for 

any installation, relocation and removal of Lessee’s Improvements shall not Interfere with 

or impair the quiet and uninterrupted use and occupancy of the Leased Premises, 

Tower, or Tower Site by Lessor or Other Tenants. Lessor reserves the right, consistent 

with good engineering practices, to reasonably and within a reasonable time period 

approve or disapprove the manner of use and the materials and labor to be used for any 

installation, replacement, relocation or removal. 

b. Prior Approval of Lessor. All construction and/or installation done by or 

on behalf of Lessee and all maintenance, repair, removal or relocation, except routine 

and/or emergency repair and maintenance, of any of Lessee’s Improvements on the 

Tower Site shall require the prior written notification from the Lessee and prior written 

approval of Lessor and shall be in compliance with any specifications or requirements of 

Lessor. 



3  

c. Maintenance.  Lessee shall provide all necessary maintenance and repair 

to Lessee’s Improvements located on the Leased Premises. Maintenance shall be 

conducted by Lessee in accordance with generally accepted engineering standards for 

similar facilities to assure that at all times Lessee’s Improvements are in conformance 

with the requirements of the FCC, FAA and all other Governmental Authorities having 

jurisdiction over Lessee, Lessor, the Leased Premises and all operations on the Leased 

Premises. 

5. TESTING: Lessee is acquiring equipment already in place and tested. 

With respect to any new equipment hereafter installed (i) Lessee shall test the new 

equipment and document Lessee’s Improvements to ensure that the actual operation 

thereof will not cause Interference with Lessor’s and or Other Tenant’s use and operation 

of the Tower, and shall provide Lessor with the test results and certification of lack of 

Interference with Lessor’s and other Tenant’s use and operation of the Tower, and (ii) 

Lessee must submit the new equipment test results and verification indicating that there is 

no Interference from Lessee’s operation, and (iii) Lessee grants permission to Lessor to 

share the Initial Test and Verification with all Other Tenants. 

6. RENT, FIRST OPTION TO RE-LEASE: 

a. Lessee shall pay as rent the sum of ONE HUNDRED and 00/100 Dollars 

($100.00) per month for  the  lease  term  due  and  payable  in  advance  in  quarterly  installments of  

$300.00 beginning February 1, 2024. 

b. Lessee shall be given the first opportunity to re-lease at the end of the 

lease term. All lease terms are renegotiable at that time. 

7. LIMITATION OF USE; NUISANCES: 

a. The Leased Premises are to be used by Lessee only for those uses 

specified in Section 1. No other use of the Leased Premises may be made by Lessee 

without the prior written consent of Lessor. 

b. The operations of Lessee’s Improvements shall be conducted at all  times 

in accordance with the standards imposed by the FCC, FAA and all other governmental 

agencies, whether federal, state, or local and whether legislative, judicial or executive 

(collectively, “Governmental Authorities”), with authority over such operations. Lessee 

shall not use or knowingly permit any part of the Leased Premises to be used for any 



4 

unlawful purpose, nor for any purpose or in any manner which is in violation of any 

federal, state, or local laws, regulations, rules, directives or orders. 

c. Lessee shall not maintain any unsafe condition nor commit an unsafe

action on the Leased Premises and shall install and maintain its equipment and facilities 

in such manner as to avoid any such unsafe condition. If Lessee, within twenty-four (24) 

hours of receipt of notice from Lessor, shall fail to remedy any such unsafe condition, 

Lessor may take all necessary steps to remedy the same and Lessee shall, when invoiced, 

reimburse Lessor for all costs and expenses. 

8. PERMITS: Lessee shall obtain and maintain, at its own expense, all

authorizations or permits which may be required for the conduct of its business and 

operations as contemplated in this Tower Lease Agreement, and for making of repairs, 

alterations, improvements, or additions with respect to equipment and facilities of Lessee, 

including installation and operation, and shall meet the requirements of applicable laws, 

rules, regulations, directives, and orders of the FCC, FFA and all other Governmental 

Authorities. Lessor may request and receive copies of any and all a u t h o r i z a t i o n s , 

permits, or regulatory approvals granted. 

9. UTILITIES: Lessee agrees to install, at its own expense, all utilities,

systems, and outlets as required by it. The cost of Lessee’s electric is included in the 

lease paragraph reprised herein. All such installations must be in compliance with 

governmental codes. Utilities required by Lessee shall be at Lessee’s expense, and may 

include emergency power installed by Lessee. Such installations must not damage or 

disrupt Lessor’s operations, or the operations of Other Tenants at the site.  Lessor 

reserves the right to interrupt utility service to Lessee at any time without notice when in 

an emergency it is necessary to do so in Lessor’s sole discretion. Lessor shall not in any 

way be liable or responsible to Lessee for any loss, damage, liability, or expense which 

Lessee must sustain or incur as a result of such utility interruptions. 

10. TAXES: Lessee shall pay taxes, assessments, or levies directly assessed

or imposed against the Improvements and all equipment and facilities or other property 

owned by Lessee located on the Tower Site and shall pay taxes attributable to the value 

of this leasehold interest. 

11. LE S SOR’S   ACCES S   AND   INS PE CTIO N   RIGHT S : Lessor   and 

Lessor’s employees, representatives, and agents shall have the right to inspect and have 



5  

access to Lessee’s Improvements located on the Tower Site at any time and for all such 

purposes as may be deemed necessary in Lessor’s sole discretion. To the extent practical, 

Lessor shall provide Lessee with twenty-four (24) hours advance notice. In the event of an 

emergency as determined by Lessor, Lessor, its employees and agents may enter for any 

purpose whatsoever, without notice. 

12. INSURANCE: Lessee will carry during the term of this Tower Lease 

Agreement, at its own cost and expense, the following insurance: 

“All Risk” Property Insurance for its property’s replacement cost; 

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Premises, Operations, 

Products and Completed Operations, and Contractual Liability coverages, with a 

minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000.00 for bodily injury or death/property damage 

arising out of any one occurrence, will provide certificate of insurance. 

b. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance as required 

by law.  
 
c. Lessee will name the Lessor as an additional insured under its Commercial 

General Liability Insurance policy. Lessee will require its insurance company to give at 

least thirty (30) days prior written notice of termination or cancellation of the policy to 

the additional insured, except for termination or cancellation for non-payment of 

premium, which notice will be ten (10) days. 

d. Lessee shall provide Lessor with certificates of insurance for the insurance 

policies required herein before the execution of this Tower Lease Agreement by Lessor. 

e. All insurance must be issued by a reputable insurance company authorized 

to transact business in the State of Missouri. 

f. In the event Lessee employs contractors to install, maintain, or repair 

equipment on the leased premises, Lessee shall require such contractors to procure and 

maintain general commercial liability, business automobile liability, workers 

compensation, and employers liability insurance with the same minimum  limits and 

under the terms and conditions as set forth above in this paragraph. 

13. OWNERSHIP OF LESSEE’S PROPERTY: The Improvements 

constructed and installed by Lessee shall be and remain the sole property of Lessee. 

Lessee shall be fully responsible for the replacement, maintenance, modification, 

rearrangement, and removal of the Improvements installed in or upon the Leased 



6  

Premises, and Lessor shall have no responsibility for the Improvements. Lessee shall 

keep all of its Improvements and other property in safe condition at all times and in 

compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders, and directives of all 

Governmental Authorities. 

14. INTERFERENCE: 

a. Lessee agrees to operate and maintain Lessee’s facilities and equipment in 

such a manner as will not result in Interference at any time with the operations of Lessor 

or Other Tenants. At the time of execution of this lease, Lessee is the only tenant of 

Lessor on the tower. It is understood that Lessor is not precluded from leasing space to 

additional Lessees on the tower. Lessor will require any additional Lessees to adjust their 

operations so that they do not interfere with the operations of Lessee. If it is impossible 

for new additional Lessees to make said adjustments, the Lessee agrees to make 

reasonable and economically feasible adjustments to accommodate additional Lessees. 

b. The term “Interference” shall mean (1) a condition which constitutes 

interference within the meaning of the Regulations of the FCC, (2) a measurable, 

significant impairment, in accordance with normal engineering standards, of the quality 

of signals from the Tower, (3) a condition caused directly or indirectly by Lessee 

resulting in the inability of any FCC licensed or unlicensed entity operating at the Tower 

Site to conform within its FCC parameters, or (4) a condition degrading, or interfering 

with Lessor’s communications system(s), all as determined by Lessor. 

c. Following completion of the initial test described in Section 5 and during 

the term and all renewal periods, if any Interference is caused by Lessee’s signal or its 

equipment or facilities or by the manner of operation thereof, the Lessee shall cooperate 

fully with the affected party (Lessor and/or Other Tenant) and eliminate such 

Interference. Upon notice to Lessee from Lessor and/or Other Tenant of any such 

Interference, (1) the affected parties shall promptly investigate the problem; (2) the 

affected parties shall take all steps necessary to identify the nature of the problem; and (3) 

the Lessee shall resolve the problem. If such Interference is not minimized to limits 

acceptable to the affected party and or parties within forty-eight (48) hours after receipt 

by Lessee of notice of Interference, Lessee shall (1) reduce transmitter power to such 

level as is necessary to eliminate the Interference pending completion and testing of 

supplemental measures to remove the Interference at the authorized power, or (2) 



7  

terminate operation until the Interference is resolved to the satisfaction of Lessor and/or 

Other Tenant. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor and/or Other Tenant for any costs and 

expenses incurred by Lessor and/or Other Tenant in connection with efforts to attenuate 

any Interference caused by Lessee’s signal or Lessee’s antennae, equipment, or facilities 

or by the manner of operation. In the event a correction of the Interference is not possible 

within 30 days, then all Interfering facilities of Lessee shall be removed at Lessee’s sole 

expense, this Tower Lease Agreement shall be modified or terminated immediately on 

written notice at the option of Lessor, and any payments for unused portions of the term 

of the Tower Lease Agreement refunded to Lessee on a per diem basis of 1/360
th of the 

annual fee. In the event of emergency, as determined by Lessor, Lessor may, in its sole 

discretion, take all actions necessary to rectify any Interference problems caused in whole 

or in part by Lessee’s facilities and equipment, and the total costs of any such measures, 

including engineering fees, labor and materials, shall be due from Lessee within   thirty 

(30) days of the date of invoice. 

15. DAMAGE TO PREMISES: In the event the Tower is destroyed or 

substantially damaged by fire, ice, snow, lighting, wind, explosion, aircraft or other 

vehicular damage, collapse, or other casualty, Lessor may, within ninety (90) days from 

the date of the damage or destruction, terminate this Tower Lease Agreement by written 

notice to Lessee. If Lessor does not terminate this Tower Lease Agreement within that 

time period, Lessor may reconstruct or repair the Tower as soon as reasonably possible. 

Lessee shall be entitled to a pro rata refund of any prepaid fee and/or to an abatement of 

fee for such time as Lessee is unable to conduct its normal activities as a result of such 

total or partial destruction or damage or need of repair. Such pro rata refund and/or 

abatement shall be Lessee's sole remedy. Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have no liability 

for any claims or losses due to business interruption or any other circumstances. If 

Lessor does not reconstruct or repair the Tower or if such reconstruction or repair is not 

accomplished so that Lessee can resume the normal broadcasting operations of Lessee’s 

station and/or other activities within one (1) year from the date its broadcasting 

operations and/or other operations are interrupted, Lessee may terminate this Tower 

Lease Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lessor. Lessee shall be 

solely responsible for repairing, restoring, or replacing its own equipment and facilities. 



8  

16. SALES, LEASES, ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLETTING: 

a. Lessor’s Right to Sell or Lease. 

1. Nothing in this Tower Lease Agreement shall be construed as in any way 

limiting Lessor’s right to use the Leased Premises or to lease, transfer its interest in, sell, 

or grant rights for the use of the Leased Premises to any other party, so long as such use, 

lease, transfer, sale or grant is subject to Lessee’s rights under this Tower Lease 

Agreement. 

2. In the event Lessor sells or transfers its interests in the Leased Premises, 

and if the purchaser expressly assumes all of the covenants, agreements, liabilities and 

obligations of Lessor, then Lessor shall be automatically discharged and released, from 

and after the date of such sale, of all obligations on the part of Lessor contained in this 

Tower Lease Agreement. 

3. Assignment or Sublet by Lessee. Lessee shall not assign this Tower Lease 

Agreement in whole or in part at any time without the prior written permission of Lessor; 

provided, however, that Lessee may assign this lease without permission to any affiliate, 

subsidiary, successor legal entity, or any entity acquiring all of the assets of Lessee or its 

subsidiaries or affiliates. Lessee shall not enter into any arrangement or agreement with a 

third party for subletting, or in any way using any of the Leased Premises or equipment 

or facilities. 

17. DEFAULT: 

a. Lessee's Default. The occurrence of any of the following events shall 

constitute a “Default by Lessee:” 

1. The failure by Lessee to pay an installment or fee or other sum or expense 

required to be paid by Lessee within ten (10) days after written notice from Lessor, or to 

perform any other of its material obligations under this Tower Lease Agreement within 

thirty (30) days after written notice from Lessor; 

2. The levying on or against the property of Lessee on the Leased Premises 

of a writ of execution or attachment which is not released or discharged within thirty (30) 

days; 

3. The doing or permitting to be done by Lessee of any act which creates a 

mechanic’s lien or claim against all or any portion of the Leased Premises which is not 



9  

released or otherwise provided for by indemnification satisfactory to Lessor within thirty 

(30) days; 

4. The filing by Lessee of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or voluntary 

petition or answer seeking reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of its debts, or any 

other relief under the Federal Bankruptcy Act or under any other insolvency act or law; 

the making by Lessee of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or the 

admission in writing by Lessee of its inability to pay its debts as they mature; or 

5. The filing of an involuntary petition against Lessee in bankruptcy or 

seeking Lessee reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of its debts or for any other 

relief under the Federal Bankruptcy Act or any other insolvency act or law, or the 

involuntary appointment of a receiver or trustee of Lessee, and the continuance of any 

such events for a period of ninety (90) days not dismissed, bonded, or stayed. 

6. The existence of an operational condition on the Leased Premises 

jeopardizing the public health, safety, or welfare that Lessee fails to correct within 

twenty-four (24) hours after written notice from Lessor; 

b. Lessor’s Rights upon Default. Upon the occurrence of any Default 

by Lessee, Lessor, in addition to any other rights or remedies it might have at law, in 

equity, or elsewhere in this Tower Lease Agreement, may terminate this Tower Lease 

Agreement by giving written notice to Lessee. Termination shall be effective when it is 

given, unless otherwise specified in the notice. On termination due to a Default by 

Lessee, Lessor may lease or relet the Leased Premises space used by Lessee or any part 

thereof to any other interested party that may be satisfactory to Lessor and for such terms 

and for such fee as Lessor may deem advisable to reduce any damages incurred by Lessor 

as a result of a Default by Lessee. 

c. Lessor's Default. The failure by Lessor to perform any of its material 

obligations under this Tower Lease Agreement within thirty (30) days after written notice 

from Lessee shall be a "Default by Lessor." 

d. Lessee's Rights on Default. Upon the occurrence of any  Default by 

Lessor, Lessee, in addition to any other rights or remedies it might have at law, in equity, 

or elsewhere in this Tower Lease Agreement, may terminate this Tower  Lease 

Agreement by giving written notice to Lessor. 



10  

e. Notice of Default. All notices of a default required by this Section 18 shall 

state the basis for claiming such default. 

f. Rights Accrued Prior to Termination. Neither the termination 

(whether by default or otherwise) nor the expiration of this Tower Lease Agreement shall 

affect any rights of the parties that accrued prior to such termination or expiration. 

18. OPTIONAL TERMINATION:    This  Tower  Lease  Agreement  may 

be terminated (a) by Lessee if it is unable to obtain or maintain any license, permit, or 

other governmental approval necessary for the construction and/or operation of the 

antenna facilities or Lessee’s business; or (b) by Lessor if it determines, in its sole 

discretion, that the Tower is structurally unsound, including but not limited to 

consideration of age of the structure, damage, or destruction of all or part of the Tower 

from any source, or factors relating to the condition of the Tower and substantiated by a 

structural analysis, the results of which are provided to Lessee prior to termination. 

19. LESSEE'S DUTIES ON TERMINATION: 

a. Surrender of Premises. Upon the expiration or termination of this 

Tower Lease Agreement, Lessee’s rights with respect to possession and use of the Leased 

Premises shall terminate. 

b. Removal of Equipment.       Within thirty (30) days after the expiration or 

termination of this Lease, Lessee shall (1) submit plans and a schedule for removal of the 

Improvements and restoration to Lessor and, (2) obtain Lessor's approval of such 

plans and schedule, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. On receiving such 

approval, Lessee shall remove the Improvements and restore the Leased Premises in 

accordance with such plans and schedule. If Lessee fails to do any of the foregoing, then 

Lessor may take all actions necessary to remove the Improvements, and all costs of those 

actions shall be due and payable by Lessee upon invoice being issued by Lessor. 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW: Lessee shall operate and maintain the 

Leased Premises and all the Improvements on the Leased Premises in compliance with all 

Laws and all applicable requirements of all Governmental Authorities. Further, should 

Lessee be cited by either the FCC or the FAA because the Leased Premises are not in 

compliance, and if Lessee does not cure the conditions of non-compliance within the time 

frame allowed by the citing agency, Lessor may terminate this Tower Lease Agreement 

immediately upon notice to Lessee. 



11  

21. INDEMNITY: Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 

Lessor, its officers, directors, agents, and employees, from and against all claims, 

damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising out of this Tower Lease 

Agreement caused by the negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of Lessee, its agents, 

employees, and contractors. This indemnification agreement shall not be limited in any 

way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for Lessee under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or 

other employee benefit acts. 

22. REMEDIES: 

a. Waiver. The failure of Lessor or Lessee to insist on strict 

performance of any of the terms and conditions of this Tower Lease Agreement shall not 

be deemed a waiver of the rights or remedies that Lessor or Lessee may have regarding 

that specific instance nor shall it be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach or default 

of the same of any other term or condition hereof. 

b. Cumulative Nature. All rights and remedies of Lessor and Lessee herein 

enumerated shall be cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed 

at law or equity, and rights and remedies may be exercised and enforced concurrently and 

whenever and as often as occasion arises. 

23. NOTICES: Whenever any notices  are  required  or  permitted  to  be 

given pursuant to this Tower Lease Agreement, the same shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed given when deposited in the United States registered or certified mail, postage 

prepaid and return receipt requested, or other receipted mail, addressed as follows: 

 

If to Lessor: City of Salem 
City Administrator 
400 North Iron Street 
Salem, MO 65560 

 

If to Lessee: Wave Internet Technologies LLC 
1201 Forum Drive 
Rolla, MO 65401 

 
Either party may change the above information during the term of this Tower Lease 

Agreement by written notice to the other party. Any notices may also be personally 

delivered or sent by overnight courier providing proof of service.  Notices may also be 



12  

sent by facsimile or e-mail if they are confirmed in writing as set forth above within three 

days. Facsimile or e-mail notices that have been confirmed shall be effective on the date 

the e-mail or facsimile notice is received. 

24. SUCCESSORS:    This Tower Lease Agreement shall be binding upon 

and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and assigns subject to any 

provisions of this Tower Lease Agreement to the contrary. 

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Tower Lease Agreement contains the 

entire agreement between the parties and cannot be changed except by a written 

instrument subsequently executed by the parties hereto. 

26. GOVERNING LAW: This Tower Lease Agreement shall be 

construed in accordance with and governed by the Laws of the State of Missouri. Any 

legal actions pertaining to or arising out of this Tower Lease Agreement shall be filed and 

maintained in the Circuit Court of Dent County, Missouri. 

27. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:       Lessee  represents  and  warrants that 

no officer, employee, or affiliate of Lessee has been or will be employed, retained, paid a 

fee, or otherwise had received or will receive any personal compensation or consideration 

by or from Lessor or any of Lessor's officers, employees or affiliates in connection with 

obtaining, arranging, or negotiating this Tower Lease Agreement. 

28. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: In no event shall Lessor be liable to 

Lessee for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any kind, 

whether arising in tort, contract, or otherwise, including (without limitation) lost profits 

or loss of use. 

29. FORCE MAJEURE: Neither party shall be responsible for its 

failure to perform any obligation due to any cause beyond its reasonable control (“Force 

Majeure”). In the event of a Force Majeure, the affected party shall notify the other 

party. The affected party shall take all reasonable steps to eliminate the cause of the 

Force Majeure; however, neither party shall be required to agree to an unfavorable 

settlement of a labor dispute. 

a. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to be a waiver of Lessor's 

sovereign immunity. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



13  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Tower Lease Agreement as 
follows: 

 
LESSOR signs on__________, 2024 
CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI 
 
 

By: __________________________ 
     Greg Parker, Mayor 

 
 
 
LESSEE signs on _________, 2024 
WAVE INTERNET TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 

 
 
By:________________________________ 
     Zachary D. Robinson, Member 



Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 March 12, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

AGENDA TITLE: Resolution No. 10-2024 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Sally Burbridge 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of Change Order for Al Brown Fields Electrical Work 

SUMMARY BY: Sally Burbridge 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

The City’s Al Brown ballfields have been unusable for some time due to the discovery of 
deteriorated wooden light poles which created an unsafe environment for some of our 
community’s you sports programs. Previously, under the ESP program new poles and field 
lights were installed but no electrical lines were run. ESP did present a proposal to run the 
electrical lines with a quoted price of $86,000. Staff discussed the options and approached ESP 
about taking over this portion of the project and overseeing it in-house. 
 
PROCUREMENT 

  
Request for sealed bids was originally advertised in The Salem News on Nov 8 and 15, 2022 for 
both Labor Only and Labor and Materials. One company responded, BCS Electrical LLC and 
was awarded a bid and contract for Labor Only in the amount of $41,760.88 and separately the 
City purchased materials for a total of $13,147.58. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

 
This item will be paid for from previous ESP funding that is in place and was included in the 
original financing package. 
 
SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: Change Order #1 Al Brown Fields Electrical Work 

DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move approval of Change Order #1 to allow 
the contractor to purchase the final additional material needed to complete the job with the 
changes in wiring layout for the Al Brown Field’s Electrical Work. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 10-2024                                                                                                                                     
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE CONTRACT 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 BETWEEN THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI (THE 
“OWNER”) AND BCS ELECTRIC, LLC (THE “CONTRACTOR”). 
 
WHEREAS, the original contract was approved by Resolution No. 45-2022 on 
November 22, 2022. 
 
WHEREAS, the change in layout has created a need for additional materials and other 
materials necessary for proper connection of the lighting to the main power source. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF 
THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. 
The Owner shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of work including additional 
materials and supplies as necessary for the completion of the work at Al Brown Fields 
and the Contractor will accept as full compensation thereof, an additional sum, not to 
exceed $10,000.00 (ten thousand dollars and no cents) for all work covered by and 
included in this change order and modified scope of work. 
 
Section 2.   
The Contractor shall begin work within seven (7) days after receipt from the Owner of 
executed copies of the Contract.  
 
Section 3. 
This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 
 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, 
MISSOURI, AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 12th DAY OF MARCH 
2024. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Greg Parker 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVAL AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Tammy Koller James K. Weber 
City Clerk City Attorney 



Al Brown Fields Electrical Work 1 Change Order #1 

CHANGE ORDER #1 
 

AL BROWN FIELDS ELECTRICAL WORK 
 FOR 
 CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI 
 

            
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this  12TH day of March, 2024, by and between the City of Salem 

Missouri, hereinafter called the Owner, and BCS Electric, LLC, hereinafter called the “Contractor”. 

 
WITNESSETH: 
 
THAT WHEREAS, the OWNER and CONTRACTOR have agreed to a change in the layout for installation of 
the underground wiring for the field lights at Al Brown Fields; and 
 
WHEREAS, the change in layout has created a need for additional materials as the wiring will be going 
around the outfield and not through the field itself in order to eliminate future maintenance issues with the field 
surface as well as eliminating the loss of field use should repair or maintenance work be necessary on the 
underground wiring; and  
 
WHEREAS, the change in layout calls for additional wiring and other materials necessary for proper 
connection of the lighting to the main power source, and  
 
WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has agreed to provide these additional materials in an effort to expedite the 
project and bring it to completion.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the compensation to be paid to the Contractor and of the mutual 
agreements herein contained, the Parties to these presents have agreed and hereby agree, the OWNER for 
itself and its successors, and the Contractor for its, his, or their executors and administrators, as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I.  That in addition to the items described in the original contract, the Contractor shall (a) furnish all 
tools, equipment, supplies, superintendence, transportation, and other construction accessories, services and 
facilities; (b) provide and perform all necessary labor; (c) provide additional materials and supplies to 
complete the work as modified, in a good, substantial, and workmanlike manner to route the wiring outside of 
the sports fields. 
 
ARTICLE II.  That the OWNER shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of the work including additional 
materials and supplies as necessary for the completion of the work at:  Al Brown Fields Electrical Work, and 
the Contractor will accept as full compensation thereof, an additional sum, not to exceed ten thousand dollars 
and no cents for all work covered by and included in this change order and modified scope of work 
designated in the foregoing Article I.   
 
ARTICLE III.  That the Contractor shall begin work within seven (7) days after receipt from the OWNER of 
executed copies of the CONTRACT. 
 
Liquidated damages will be waived for any one period of time covered by a time extension granted by the 
OWNER. 
 
In case of joint responsibility for any delay in the final completion of the Work covered by the Agreement; 
where two or more separate Agreements are in force at the same time and cover work on the same project 
and at the same site, the total amount of liquidated damages assessed against all contractors under such 
Agreement for any one day of delay in the final completion of the Work will not be greater than the 
approximate total of the damages sustained by the OWNER by reason of such delay in completion of the 
Work, and the amount assessed against any Contractor for such one day of delay will be based upon the 



Al Brown Fields Electrical Work 2 Change Order #1 

individual responsibility of such Contractor for the aforesaid delay as determined by and in the judgment of 
the OWNER. 
 
ARTICLE IV.  This Agreement will not be binding and effective until signed by the OWNER. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to these presents have executed this CHANGE ORDER in the year and 
day first above mentioned. 
 
SIGNATURE:       ATTEST: 

 
 

       
City of Salem             
         City Clerk 
By       

Mayor       (SEAL) 
 
 
 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
 
SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
 
       By       
Contractor, Party of the Second Part      (Name and Title)





























Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                March 12, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

AGENDA TITLE: Chain Link Fence Bid Approval 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Donnie Moore 

ACTION REQUESTED:  

SUMMARY BY: Tammy Koller 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

The city of Salem solicited bids from qualified contractors to install a commercial grade chain 
link fence. The fence will need to be installed around the industrial park water tower and well # 4 
to secure the area and equipment. 
Minimum specifications for the Chain Link Fencing are as follows: • 1100 feet of six-foot nine-
gauge chain link fence • Two six-foot walk gates • Two twenty-four-foot double swing gates • 
Condition: New • Warranty: 90 days or more All vendors who are interested in submitting a 
quote for the Chain Link Fencing are required to provide the following information: • Warranty 
available on the Chain Link Fencing • Quote for the Chain Link Fencing and Gates. 
 
PROCUREMENT 

Three (3) quotes were solicited.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
 
 
SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: Bid Document:   

Leo Morgan Fencing   $24,000.00 
Diamond Fence LLC   $45,000.00 
J&M Construction & Fencing LLC   $29,950.00 
 

 
Recommended Motion:     Vote to approve J&M Construction & Fencing LLC Bid for 
$29,950.00. 
 
 
 
 

 

 













































Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 March 12, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

AGENDA TITLE: Surplus Property-2nd Street 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Sally Burbridge 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of deeming a vacant lot as surplus and making it 
available for sale 

SUMMARY BY: Sally Burbridge 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

During the spring/summer of 2023 the property owner of 306 E. Second St was sent a citation 
letter for the property. The owner had inherited the property and does not live in the area and 
has no intention of moving to Salem. At the time the property had a concrete foundation with the 
wood floor still on top, and a cistern. The property owner donated the property to the City of 
Salem via the Voluntary Demolition Program. 
Last month the city was able to demolish the foundation and cistern, backfill the lot bringing it to 
grade and seed the property. 
With the lot cleaned up, discussions among staff have found no municipal or public use fitting 
the property due to it’s size and location and recommend the property be surplused and sold 
rather than keeping the property and needing to mow and maintain it on an ongoing basis. 
 
 
PROCUREMENT 

 NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

Sale of the property will be unanticipated revenue for the City of Salem’s General Fund 
 
SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: Ordinance No 3601 

DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move approval of Ordinance No. 3601 
surplussing the property addressed as 306 E. Second St., Salem, MO and making it available 
for sale via sealed bids or some other means. 

 



BILL 3601                               ORDINANCE 3601 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF A PIECE OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, the City owns a small piece of recently cleared, filled and seeded land at the corner of 
E. Second and N Hickory Streets and consisting of approximately .11 acres; and 
 
WHEREAS, this piece of property was donated to the City by the then owner as part of the Voluntary 
Demolition Program with a foundation and existing wood floor which posed a public safety concern 
which has since been demolished; and 
 
WHEREAS, this property is of no use to the City and will need ongoing maintenance for which the 
City desires not to be responsible for; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City feels the interests of the citizens would be best served if the unneeded real 
property was declared as surplus and sold. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The following piece of real property is hereby declared as surplus: 
 
A vacant lot at the address of 306 E. Second St, Salem, Missouri whose legal description follows:  
 
LOT 4 EXCEPT THE W 75’ THEREOF BLOCK 4 EAST SALEM 
 
Section 2. City staff is hereby authorized to sell at via sealed bids or otherwise dispose of the 
aforementioned piece of real property which is no longer needed for ongoing municipal operations. 
 
Section 3. 
 
 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and 
approval. 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AND 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR, THIS 26th DAY OF MARCH 2024. 
 
APPROVED:  ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Greg Parker  Tammy Koller 
Mayor City Clerk 
 
 
  APPROVAL AS TO FORM 
 
  ___________________________ 
  James Weber 
 City Attorney 



BILL NO. 3602                                                                                       ORDINANCE NO. 3602 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE COUNCIL FOR A HEALTHY DENT 
COUNTY FOR LEASE OF CERTAIN CITY OWNED PROPERTY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Salem owns property commonly known as Salem Community Center @ 
the Armory; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council for a Healthy Dent County desires to lease this property to provide 
conference rooms, classrooms, offices, public use areas, multi-purpose banquet area, gym area, 
kitchen and fitness center facility including cardio room, weight room and group exercise room. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM 
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS; 
 
Section 1. 
 
 That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Council for a Healthy Dent County for lease of certain City owned 
property.  A copy of the Agreement is attached hereto and made a part thereof, identified as 
Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. 
 
 All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 
Section 3. 
 
 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after the 
date of its passage and approval. 
 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, 
AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 13TH DAY OF MARCH, 2024. 
 
APPROVED: ATTEST: 
  
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Greg Parker Tammy Koller 
Mayor  City Clerk 
 
  APPROVE AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  James Weber 
      City Attorney 
 



1 

 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

This Lease shall be effective this _____ day of ____________________, 2024 and is by and  

between the City of Salem, Missouri, a municipal corporation, herein  referred to as LESSOR, and the 

Council for a Healthy Dent County (CHDC), with principal office at 1200 W. Rolla Road, Salem, 

Missouri 65560, herein referred to as LESSEE.  

 

1. DEMISE, DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES, and TERM: LESSOR leases to LESSEE 

and LESSEE takes as tenant from LESSOR, for a term of one hundred and twenty (120) 

months, to commence on this _____ day of ______________, 2024, the demised premises 

described as the Salem Community Center @ the Armory, located at 1200 W. Rolla Road, 

Salem, MO 65560 and currently occupied by LESSEE, together with all easements, rights, 

improvements, and appurtenances. 

 

2. RENT: In partnership between the LESSOR and LESSEE, rent shall be in the amount of ten 

(10) dollars per month, and LESSOR shall retain the right to continue to access and utilize the 

demised premises, specifically office space and the gymnasium for the purposes of the Parks 

and Recreation Dept. and the use of the meeting and conference rooms to conduct City business. 

 

3. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE: LESSOR shall make all necessary repairs to the 

interior electrical system, HVAC, plumbing, lighting, and structural components of the 

interior of the demised premises. LESSOR shall make all necessary repairs to the exterior 

of the demised premises, including repairs of the roof, sidewalks, and parking lots. 

LESSEE shall provide custodial services to the premises and keep the premises free from 

trash and debris. LESSEE shall provide all necessary supplies and materials needed for 

custodial services to the premises. LESSEE shall provide for the maintenance of the interior 

and exterior of the demised premises that have not been specifically delegated to the 

LESSOR herein. 

 

4. REMODELING, RENOVATION, AND CONSTRUCTION: Upon proper 

authorization, LESSEE shall have the ability at LESSEE’s own expense to remodel, 

renovate, and or perform construction on the demised premises. However, any and all 

remodeling, renovation, and construction, no matter how small or insignificant, shall have 

the prior written authorization of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Salem. 

Furthermore, any and all projects related to the remodeling, renovation, and construction of 

the facility or property must comply with all applicable local, state, and federal regulations 



2 

 

and laws. LESSEE shall indemnify LESSOR and be responsible for any damages at the 

demised premises that occur as a result of any remodeling, renovation, or construction 

request made by LESSEE pursuant to this section. LESSOR assumes no liability of any kind 

for such remodeling, renovation, or construction to any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, or 

material man. Such remodeling, renovation, or construction shall become a part of the demised 

premises and shall belong to LESSOR, without compensation to LESSEE, at the expiration 

of this lease. 

 

5. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: LESSOR shall not be liable for any personal injury or 

property damage occurring on or about the premises or to any persons thereon, including 

but not limited to injury resulting from the following: (1) a loss of property by theft  or  

burglary;  (2)  accidental  damage  to person or property on or about the premises from the 

operation of any elevator  or the use  of any utility on the premises; (3) any damage  caused  

by action  of the  natural  elements; or (4) damage or injury resulting from the conduct of 

the employees of LESSEE, whether negligent or otherwise. LESSEE shall not make any 

claim against LESSOR for any loss or damage described herein and shall indemnify, 

defend, and hold harmless LESSOR from any such claim that may occur against LESSOR. 

LESSEE shall be responsible for the application of insurance proceeds, if any, to the repair 

or replacement of the premises or property thereon necessitated by any damages caused by 

the above circumstances, and if the injury was not insured against, LESSEE shall repair the 

demised premises or replace or repair property thereon at the sole expense of LESSEE. 

LESSOR shall not be liable for any damages to property caused by a leak or defect in the 

roof or in any other part of the interior or exterior of the building that may remain under the 

control of LESSOR; or for any damages resulting from the acts or omissions of other 

occupants of the building, or occupants of the adjoining building. Whenever there shall be a 

leak in the roof, or other defect in the common premises, LESSEE shall notify LESSOR in 

writing and LESSOR shall repair the defect at the expense of LESSOR. LESSOR shall not be 

liable for any damages unless LESSOR fails to repair the defect within a reasonable time after 

written notice of the defect is delivered. LESSEE shall make good faith efforts to mitigate all 

damages while the demised premises are affected by any such defect. If LESSOR shall fail or 

refuse to repair the damaged property within a reasonable time after receipt of notice thereof, 

LESSEE shall have the right to make the necessary repairs in accordance with §441.234, 

RSMo, as in effect on the date of execution of this agreement. 

LESSOR shall not be responsible or liable to LESSEE for any loss or damage that may 

be occasional by or through either the acts or omissions of persons occupying adjoining 



3 

 

premises, persons occupying any part of the building adjacent to or connected with the premises, 

or tenants in any other part of the building on the demised premises. Nothing herein shall 

preclude LESSEE from bringing any action necessary to obtain damages from either the 

occupants of adjoining or connected buildings or tenants of the building on the demised premises, 

if damages are incurred by LESSEE as a result of their actions. 

 LESSEE shall be responsible for arranging, and all expenditures relating to, any security 

precautions that LESSEE deems necessary for the safety of the personnel, guests, or property of 

LESSEE located on the demised premises. LESSEE shall also provide, at the expense of 

LESSEE, insurance against losses of the above nature that LESSEE desires to maintain. 

LESSEE shall release LESSOR, and/or the representatives, agents, and employees of 

LESSOR, from liability for any injury to LESSEE, or the agents, employees, or guests of 

LESSEE, resulting from any cause whatsoever, except injury or damage resulting from the 

willful acts of LESSOR, or the representatives, agents, and employees of LESSOR. 

 

6. RENEWAL: If, at the expiration of the present lease terms, LESSOR shall desire to 

continue leasing the demised premises, LESSEE shall have the first right or privilege to enter 

into a new lease agreement with LESSOR. Such right or privilege of renewal shall be 

exercised by LESSEE providing written notice to LESSOR not less than 60 days and not 

more than 120 days prior to the expiration of this lease term. The parties shall engage in 

good faith negotiations regarding a lease agreement of the demised premises upon such 

notice being provided to LESSOR. 

7. LESSEE TO COMPLY WITH LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS:LESSEE   shall 

comply with all local, state, and federal laws, rules, regulations, and requirements applicable 

to the demised premises, and in particular with those for the correction, prevention, and 

abatement of nuisances or other grievances in, on, or connected with the demised premises 

during the term of this lease. 

 

8. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF BUILDING: If during the term of this lease the 

building on the demised premises is totally destroyed, this lease shall terminate unless 

agreed upon otherwise in writing by both LESSOR and LESSEE. In the event this lease is 

terminated due to the destruction of the building on the demised premises, prepaid rent shall 

be refunded or credited in whole or in part and future rent shall abate in whole or in part, as 

may be equitable under all the circumstances. Further, LESSOR and LESSEE agree to 

participate in good faith discussions prior to termination of this lease pursuant to this 



4 

 

section, in order to determine the viability of rebuilding the demised premises to be used as 

a Community Center in the event of total destruction of the current building on the demised 

premises and continuance of this lease. Any such decision to rebuild on the demised 

premises shall be at the sole discretion of the LESSOR and subject to the approval of the 

Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of Salem, Missouri. 

9. LESSOR'S RIGHT TO INSPECT OR REPAIR: LESSOR and its agents or other 

representatives shall have the right to enter the demised premises, or any part thereof, at all 

reasonable hours for the purpose of examination or making such repairs or alterations as may 

be necessary to make safe and/or preserve the demised premises. 

 

10. UTILITIES: In partnership between the LESSOR AND LESSEE, the expense of utilities of 

the demised premises, including electricity, gas, water, sewer, and/or other utilities during 

the term of this Lease shall be the responsibility of the LESSEE. The financial statements of 

the LESSEE shall be provided to the LESSOR within sixty (60) days after the close of the 

LESSEE's fiscal year, every subsequent year. The financial statements of the LESSEE may 

be evaluated by the LESSOR at any time in order to determine whether the utility expense of 

the demised premises, if any, should be paid by the LESSEE to the LESSOR or if LESSEE 

shall receive a credit towards the expense of utilities for the demised premises. LESSEE 

agrees to use its best effort to efficiently conserve such utilities and avoid wasteful use of 

utilities. In any event, the LESSEE shall not receive a credit towards the utility expense of 

the demised premises in excess of $2,400 in any given month, during the term of this lease 

agreement, without prior approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of 

Salem, Missouri. 

11. MANNER OF GIVING NOTICES: Any notice to be given by either part to the other, 

pursuant to the provisions of this lease or of any law, shall be given by registered or 

certified mail, addressed at the party for whom it is intended at the address stated above or 

at such other address as such party may have designated in writing. It is agreed that there is 

to be no enforceable default against LESSEE or the exercise of any option or right granted 

to LESSOR under any provision hereof in the event of LESSEE'S default or omission, 

unless notice thereof shall have been given as indicated herein, specifying the default or 

omission complained of, and LESSEE shall have had 15 days after the actual receipt of 

such notice to remedy the default or omission. If the default or omission complained of is of 



5 

 

such nature that it cannot be completely cured within such 15 day period, such default 

nevertheless shall not be enforceable against LESSEE if LESSEE shall have begun curing it 

within the 15 day period, and shall, with reasonable diligence and in good faith, proceed to 

remedy it. 

 

12. INSURANCE: It is agreed that all policies of insurance to be maintained in force by the 

respective parties hereto shall be obtained from good and solvent insurance companies. 

LESSEE shall, at its own expense, at all times during the term of this lease, maintain in force 

a policy or policies of insurance, written by one or more responsible insurance carriers 

which will insure LESSOR against liability for injury to or death of persons or loss or 

damage to property occurring in or about the demised premises. The liability under such 

insurance shall not be less than $1,000,000.00 for any one person killed or injured, 

$1,000,000.00 for any one accident and $50,000.00 property damage. A copy of this policy 

shall be provided by the LESSEE to the LESSOR.  In addition, the LESSEE shall require 

the insurance carrier to notify the LESSOR in writing of any change in policy or 

cancellation. 

LESSEE shall maintain and keep in force all employees' compensation insurance 

required under the Laws of the State of Missouri and such other insurance as may be 

necessary to protect LESSOR against any other liability to person or property arising 

hereunder by operation of law, whether such law be now in force or adopted subsequent to 

execution hereof. 

LESSOR agrees to insure and keep insured, during the entire term of this lease agreement, 

at its sole expense, the demised premises for loss or damage by fire and all other casualties and 

shall pay all premiums as they become due and will deliver copies of such policy or policies. 

In the event the demised premises shall be damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty 

so insured against, LESSEE shall claim no interest in any insurance settlement arising out of any 

such loss and it will execute all documents required by LESSOR or the insurance company or 

companies that may be necessary for use in connection with the settlement of any such loss. 

LESSEE shall be responsible for insuring all personal property and fixtures owned by LESSEE. 

 

13. FIXTURES: All fixtures installed by LESSEE on the demised premises shall be and remain the 

property of LESSEE during the term of the lease and may be removed at any time during the 

term of this lease or at the expiration thereof. Any such fixtures remaining on the premises after 

the expiration of the term of this lease shall be deemed abandoned by LESSEE and shall become 



6 

 

the property of LESSOR. Any damage to the demised premises caused by the removal of such 

fixtures shall be repaired by LESSEE. 

14. LESSOR'S COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES: LESSOR covenants and warranties that: 

a. LESSOR is the owner of the demised premises and has the right to make this lease. 

b. LESSEE, on the performance of all of the terms and conditions of this lease on its part to 

be performed, shall at all times during the term hereof peacefully and quietly hold and 

enjoy the demised premises. 

c. The demised premises are now free from all encumbrances except mortgages and trust deeds 
of record. 
 

15. LESSOR'S RE-ENTRY ON DEFAULT OR ABANDONMENT:  If  the demised premises, or 

any part thereof, shall be deserted or become vacant during the term of this lease, or if any default 

is made in the payment of rent that was required in writing to be paid or in the performance of any 

of the covenants herein contained, LESSOR or its representatives may re-enter the premises by 

summary or other proceedings and remove all persons there from, and LESSEE shall pay at the 

same time as the rent becomes payable under the terms hereof a sum equivalent to the rent 

reserved herein. LESSOR may on reentry rent the premises on behalf of LESSEE, reserving the 

right to rent the premises for a longer  period of time than that fixed in the original lease, without 

releasing the original tenant from liability, applying any sums collected, first to the expense of 

resuming or obtaining possession, second to restoring the premises to a rentable condition, and 

finally to the payment of the rent and all of the charges due and to become due  to LESSOR,  any 

surplus  to  be paid to LESSEE, who shall remain liable for any deficiency. 

16. REAL PROPERTY TAXES TO BE PAID BY LESSOR: LESSOR shall pay all real property 

taxes assessed and levied against the demised premises by the state, city, county, or other taxing 

authorities. 

 

17. ACCELERATION OF RENTAL WHERE INSTALLMENT NOT PAID: If LESSEE shall 

fail to pay any month's installment of rent, after it has been required in writing, for a period of 

thirty (30) days after the same becomes due and payable, then all the installments of rent for the 

whole term hereof shall become due and payable at once. In addition, in the event of any such 

nonpayment of any month's installment of rent, on demand of LESSOR or its assigns, LESSEE 

shall surrender to LESSOR or its assigns complete and peaceable possession of the premises 

herein leased, waiving all other notice of any kind or description. 

 

 



7 

 

18. ACCELERATION OF RENT IN THE EVENT OF BANKRUPTCY OR INSOLVENCY: 

This lease is made on the condition that in the event of breach by LESSEE of any of the 

agreements herein, or in the event that LESSEE becomes bankrupt, insolvent or makes an 

assignment for the benefit of creditors, or discontinues  business  in the premises for any other 

reason whatsoever, the balance of rental for the entire term of this lease shall be considered at 

once due and payable without notice or demand on the part of LESSOR. LESSOR may at any 

time after such a breach of this lease occurs, enter the premises, take possession thereof, and 

thereby terminate all rights and interests of LESSEE therein and hereunder. 

19. LESSOR TO DESIGNATE PLACE OF PAYMENT: All payments of rent or other sums 

due to LESSOR hereunder shall be made to The City of Salem, 400 North Iron, Salem, Missouri 

65560, or at such other place as LESSOR shall designate in writing, from time to time. 

20. INTEREST ON RENT ARREARAGE: Any installment of rent accruing under the provisions 

of this lease, that shall not be paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum from 

the date when the same was payable by the terms hereof, until the same shall be paid by LESSEE. 

21. ASSIGNMENT: LESSEE may not, without the prior written consent of LESSOR, assign this 

lease or any interest hereunder or otherwise permit the use of the demised premises by any party 

other than LESSEE. LESSEE shall be permitted to temporarily rent space in the facility for 

purposes of events. Such income from event rentals shall belong to LESSEE. LESSOR shall not 

be liable for any personal injury that may arise due to any temporary event rental and LESSEE 

agrees to indemnify and defend LESSOR in the event that any personal injury occurs due to an 

event rental pursuant to this section. Consent to one assignment shall not be deemed a waiver of 

this provision, and all later assignments shall likewise be made only on prior written consent of 

LESSOR. Assignees shall become liable directly to LESSOR for all obligations of LESSEE 

hereunder, without, however, relieving LESSEE of such liability. 

 

22. ATTORNEY'S FEES: If either party is compelled to incur any expenses including reasonable 

attorney's fees in instituting and prosecuting any action or proceeding by reason of any default of 

LESSEE hereunder, the sum or sums so paid with all interest, costs, and damages shall be due 

from the non-prevailing party. 

23. LEASE BINDING ON SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: The covenants and agreements 

contained in this lease shall be binding on the parties hereto and on their respective successors, heirs, 

executors, administrators and assigns. 

24. JURISDICTION: This lease shall be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri. Any provision 



8 

 

herein that shall be found to not comply with the laws of the State of Missouri shall be severed and 

all other provisions of this lease shall remain in full effect. 

25. MODIFICATION: Any modification of this lease shall be in writing and signed by both parties. 

26. TERMINATION OF PREVIOUS LEASE AGREEMENT: This agreement shall supersede all 

other previous lease agreements between the parties with regard to these demised premises. All prior 

lease agreements between the parties regarding these demised premises shall be terminated by 

mutual agreement of the parties upon execution of this lease agreement. 

 

 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Mayor Greg Parker (Date)   Representative of CHDC (Date) 

     City of Salem, Missouri 

 

 

 ____________________________   

   City Clerk Tammy Koller (Date)    

    City of Salem, Missouri 

 


	Res. No. 08-2024 Old Middle School Property.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 8-2024
	NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:
	James K. Weber
	City Attorney

	Res. No. 9-2024 Wave Tower Lease Agreement.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 9-2024
	NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:
	James K. Weber
	City Attorney

	#3472-Wave Lease Agreement 2024.pdf
	TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT
	4. INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS:
	6. RENT, FIRST OPTION TO RE-LEASE:
	7. LIMITATION OF USE; NUISANCES:
	11. L
	14. INTERFERENCE:
	16. SALES, LEASES, ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLETTING:
	17. DEFAULT:
	19. LESSEE'S DUTIES ON TERMINATION:
	22. REMEDIES:
	LESSOR signs on__________, 2024
	Greg Parker, Mayor

	Ord Surplus  of 2nd St Lot.pdf
	BILL 3601                               ORDINANCE 3601
	Greg Parker  Tammy Koller
	Mayor City Clerk

	James Weber


	Ord Surplus  of 2nd St Lot.pdf
	BILL 3601                               ORDINANCE 3601
	Greg Parker  Tammy Koller
	Mayor City Clerk

	James Weber


	3602 - Lease Agreement with Healthy Dent Co.pdf
	BILL NO. 3602                                                                                       ORDINANCE NO. 3602
	Greg Parker Tammy Koller
	Mayor  City Clerk
	James Weber



